
From: Andrea Russell
To: Gray, Ashley P - DNR; Hon, David F - DNR
Cc: Mark Meurette; Mario Diaz; Joseph Baregi; Connor Doede; Troy Jordan; Shelley Koehn
Subject: 3M Wausau Downtown Prelim NOV Response for EC
Date: Monday, November 29, 2021 12:43:38 PM
Attachments: image002.png

image003.png
image004.png
image005.png
image007.png
3M Wausau Downtown Prelim NOV Response for EC 112921.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. 
Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is
safe.

Hi Ashley and David:  Attached please find a Preliminary Response to the NOV issued to our Wausau
Downtown Plant (2021-WCEE-3M Company).  We will use the Preliminary Response to guide the
Enforcement Conference discussion scheduled for today at 1:30 PM.  Our apologies for not getting
this out sooner, and we realize you may not have the opportunity to review prior to the EC – we will
share a screen with the document pulled up during the EC to aid in discussion.
 
Thank you,  and talk to you in a bit,
 
Andrea
 

 
Andrea Russell | Senior Environmental Scientist 
3M Environment, Health, Safety, and Product Stewardship
3M Center, 224-5W-03 | St. Paul, MN 55144-1000 | United States
Mobile: +1 612 791 6401
arussell4@mmm.com
 

 

mailto:arussell4@mmm.com
mailto:Ashley.Gray@wisconsin.gov
mailto:David.Hon@wisconsin.gov
mailto:mmeurette@mmm.com
mailto:mdiaz@mmm.com
mailto:jrbaregi@mmm.com
mailto:cjdoede@mmm.com
mailto:tjordan@mmm.com
mailto:skoehn2@mmm.com
mailto:arussell4@mmm.com
https://twitter.com/3m
https://www.linkedin.com/company/3m
https://www.facebook.com/3M
https://secure-web.cisco.com/1eBlTGuzziW0cTEbDdrvwK6J9iKH8jZzj7uRdRdwULhrB8zH-h34J83kTJswAAlAboCsBX8RBCy3s8j0yk9-973h3ywDAdJafWxsWyozoZa-qkTJClEsFlZTCkiuvPHKB5IY_PJb91nakBa3hzdJhvruKozTQlGPIyL8t3xBwMOnvE88fItKv9Nv0MXyTzBcn-Gatt1pYRSG0bXeDF74GuVxha38ueXmr7LjPpzWJ9Ke-phxaZGZ0PEi0NYrOo2Mw4yT05METLHzIdCz4QDht7kBQK2Wpd_nrEs8JXHjBmg9qolnjUyjUUhG9rPpVDIrq/https%3A%2F%2Finstagram.com%2F3m%2F
https://www.youtube.com/3m
http://www.3m.com/

















3M.com






3M Environment,   3M Center 0224-05-W-03 
Health, and Safety   St. Paul, MN  55144 


 


 


 
 
 
November 29, 2021 
 
ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
State of Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources 
1300 W. Clairemont Ave. 
Eau Claire, WI 54701 
Attn:  David Hon, Environmental Enforcement Specialist  
 
Re:  Notice of Violation Preliminary Response – For Discussion at Enforcement Conference 
        3M Wausau (Downtown):  FID No. 737009460 
 
Dear Mr. Hon: 
 
3M is providing a Preliminary Response to the Notice of Violation (NOV) issued by the Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources (Department) on November 3, 2021 as a result of a Full 
Compliance Evaluation conducted at the 3M Wausau Plant (Downtown Facility) beginning 
October 6, 2021.   3M is providing this Preliminary Response to aid in discussion of the NOV at 
the Enforcement Conference scheduled for November 29, 2021. 
 
Each of the Department’s Alleged Violations (AVs) are paraphrased below in italics, followed by 
3M’s Response to the AV,  “Proposed Corrective Actions to Resolve” the AV, and “Proposed 
Corrective Actions to Maintain Compliance” following resolution of the AV.  3M’s “Proposed 
Corrective Actions to Resolve” each AV are what we believe to be the necessary activities to 
correct the instance(s) of non-compliance as described in the AV.  Thus, completion of the 
“Resolve” Corrective Actions for each AV will signify a return to compliance from the AV.  The 
“Proposed Corrective Actions to Maintain Compliance” are corrective actions proposed to 
support and maintain future compliance, and while they will be completed by the listed 
deadlines, are not necessary to Resolve the associated AVs. 
 
Alleged Violation 1:  Failure to test for Fugitive Emissions for Processes P30, P32, P33, P34, 
P39, and P40. 


Air Permit 737009460-P30 Condition I.ZZ.1.b.(2)(a)…During the Inspection, 3M stated 
they have not completed performance testing for fugitive emissions for processes P30, 
P32, P33, P34, P39, and P40. 


 
3M’s Response to AV 1:   


3M does not contest this Alleged Violation.  We believe a lack of understanding of the 
fugitive emission testing requirements (reference 40 CFR 60.672(b) and (e)) was the 
cause of this issue.   
 


Proposed Corrective Actions to Resolve AV 1: 


• 3M scheduled Performance Testing of P30, P32, P33, P34, P39, and P40 to demonstrate 


compliance with NSPS OOO fugitive emission limits at 40 CFR 60.672(b) and (e) for 


November 18, 2021.  A test protocol was submitted for this testing via WDNR 







 


 


Switchboard on November 11, 2021.  Due to illness and short staffing, the testing was 


not completed as scheduled.  The testing has been rescheduled to the week of 


December 6, 2021.  Proposed Target Date for Completion:  December 15, 2021 


• 3M will submit a copy of the Test Report to WDNR within 60 days of the test date 


pursuant to NR 439.075(9).  Proposed Target Date for Completion:  February 4, 2022 


 


Proposed Corrective Action to Maintain Compliance -  AV 1:  N/A, one-time compliance event. 


 


 


Alleged Violation 2:  Failure to Report Deviations to the Department. 
Air Permit 737009460-P30 Condition II.D.5…During the inspection, the Department 
reviewed 3M’s Semiannual Monitoring Report submitted August 27, 2021.  The Report 
did not identify deviations, including those reported to the Department on April 12, 
2021. 


 
3M’s Response to AV 2:  3M does not contest this Alleged Violation.  We believe this was an 
inadvertent omission from the Report. 
 
Proposed Corrective Action to Resolve AV 2:   


• 3M will revise and resubmit the first half 2021 Semiannual Monitoring Report to 
incorporate this item and the items discussed in AV 3, AV 4, and AV 5.  Proposed 
Target Date for Completion:  January 15, 2022 


 
Proposed Corrective Action to Maintain Compliance – AV2: 


• 3M will develop a Standard Operating Procedure for reviewing and reporting permit 
and emission standard deviations.  This SOP will be reviewed each time a semi-
annual report is completed to ensure all deviations and excursions are reported as 
required.  Proposed Target Date for Completion:  February 1, 2022 


 
 


Alleged Violation 3:  Failure to report CAM Excursions in the Semiannual Monitoring Report 
Air Permit 737009460-P25 Condition I.ZZZ.2.a.(3)(a)…During the inspection, the 
Department reviewed 3M’s pressure drop records and the Semiannual Monitoring 
Report dated August 27, 2021.  Based on the Department’s review of these records, 
there were CAM excursions in the pressure drop records which were not included in the 
Semiannual Monitoring Report. 


 
3M’s Response to AV 3:  3M does not contest this Alleged Violation.  We believe this was an 
inadvertent omission from the Report. 
 
Proposed Corrective Action to Resolve AV3:   


• 3M will revise and resubmit the first half 2021 Semiannual Monitoring Report to 
incorporate this item and the items discussed in AV 2, AV 4, and AV 5.  Proposed 
Target Date for Completion:  January 15, 2022 


 
Proposed Corrective Action to Maintain Compliance – AV3:  Semi-Annual Deviation Reporting 
SOP:  See Proposed Corrective Action to Maintain Compliance – AV2 (above). 
 







 


 


Alleged Violation 4:  Failure to Update and Carry Out the Malfunction Prevention and 
Abatement Plan (MPAP). 


Air Permit 737009460-P25/P30 Condition II.F:… As a result of reviewing the MPAP, dated 


September 2018 and uploaded to the Switchboard on October 4, 2021, during the 


inspection, the Department found that: 


a. The MPAP did not include control device C19 (baghouse #15). 


b. The MPAP references outdated pressure drop ranges as being permit limits. 


c. 3M was not conducting calibrations at the frequencies identified in the MPAP. 


3M’s Response to AV 4:  3M does not contest this Alleged Violation.  3M acknowledges 
that the MPAP was not updated to include control device C19 (baghouse #15) or reflect the 
current pressure drop range from the Permit.  3M acknowledges all calibrations were not 
conducted at the frequencies identified in the MPAP. 
 
Proposed Corrective Actions to Resolve AV 4:   


• 3M will revise and resubmit the first half 2021 Semiannual Monitoring Report to 
incorporate this item and the items discussed in AV 2, AV 3, and AV 5.  Proposed Target 
Date for Completion:  January 15, 2022 


• 3M is in the process of reviewing and updating the MPAP to include control device C19 


(baghouse #15).  As part of the updates, 3M will assure that that the listed calibration 


frequencies meet the frequency requirements as listed in NR 439.11 and match those 


listed in the current facility preventative maintenance procedures.  A copy of the 


updated MPAP will be provided to the Department.  Proposed Target Date for 


Completion:  January 15, 2022 


Proposed Corrective Action to Maintain Compliance – AV 4:  Semi-Annual Deviation 
Reporting SOP:  See Proposed Corrective Action to Maintain Compliance – AV2 (above). 


 
 
Alleged Violation 5:  Failure to Calibrate Controls Yearly. 


Air Permit 737009460-P25/P30 Condition II.C.2.q….During the inspection, the 
Department reviewed 3M’s calibration records.  Based on the Department’s review of 
3M’s calibration records, 3M has not calibrated all instruments annually.  In addition, 
3M did not maintain records of annual calibrations for all instruments. 


 


3M’s Response to AV 5:  3M does not contest this Alleged Violation.  3M acknowledges not 
all annual calibrations were completed as required by the MPAP and/or the Operating 
Permit.   


 
Proposed Corrective Actions to Resolve AV 5: 


• 3M will revise and resubmit the first half 2021 Semiannual Monitoring Report to 
incorporate this item and the items discussed in AV 2, AV 3, and AV 4.  Proposed Target 
Date for Completion:  January 15, 2022 


• 3M will calibrate those units that require annual calibration per the MPAP and have not 


been calibrated in the past 365 days.  Proposed Target Date for Completion:  December 


15, 2021 


 


  







 


 


Proposed Corrective Action to Maintain Compliance – AV 5: 


• Semi-Annual Deviation Reporting SOP:  See Proposed Corrective Action to Maintain 
Compliance – AV 2 (above). 


• 3M will create an annual Preventative Maintenance task for each monitor that requires 
annual calibration.  Proposed Target Date for Completion:  December 15, 2021 


 
 
Alleged Violation 6:  Failure to Keep and Maintain Records of Technical Drawings for Stack 
S64. 


Air Permit 737009460-P30 Condition I.ZZZ.4.a.(1)(a):…During the inspection, the 


Department reviewed 3M’s technical drawing of Stack S64.  Stack S64 is shown on the 


technical drawing to be 45 feet and 5 inches, which is less than the height of 46 feet as 


identified in Table 1. 


 
3M’s Response to AV 6:  3M does not contest this Alleged Violation.  We are unsure why this 
discrepancy exists. 
 
Proposed Corrective Actions to Resolve AV 6: 


• 3M hired a 3rd party to measure S64.  Measurements were taken on November 16, 
2021.  As shown in the attached document, the stack height is greater than 46 feet: 
(S64 Top (1237.5 ft) - highest Asphalt Elevation (1190.9) = S64 Stack Height of 46.6 feet).  
Based on an initial review of this information, 3M believes that the stack is above the 
permitted stack height and demonstrates interim compliance with the permit. 


• To demonstrate full compliance with the permit, 3M will update the technical drawing 


to reflect this height.  Proposed Target Date for Completion:  February 1, 2022 


Proposed Corrective Action to Maintain Compliance – AV 6:  N/A, one-time compliance 


demonstration. 


 
Alleged Violation 7:  Failure to meet Cooler Water Flowrate. 


Air Permit 737009460-P30 Condition I.K.1.b.(1)…During the Inspection, the Department 
reviewed 3M’s July 2021 cooler water flowrate records.  Based on the records, the cooler 
water flowrate is intermittently less than 0.01 gal/ton/°F-kiln. 


 
3M’s Response to AV 7:  3M does not contest this Alleged Violation.   
 
Proposed Corrective Actions to Resolve AV 7: 


• 3M is reviewing tracking methods for cooler water flowrate to ensure cooler water 


flowrate is being tracked accurately.  In addition, we are reviewing other potential 


compliance demonstration methods with the goal of clearly demonstrating compliance 


with emission or operating limits.  3M will present the results of this review to the 


Department in an e-mail.  Target Date for Completion:  January 15th, 2022. 


• If needed, 3M will submit a permit modification application to incorporate the new or 


revised compliance demonstration.  Target Date for Completion:  February 1, 2022.  


Proposed Corrective Action to Maintain Compliance – AV 7:  To Be Determined based on 


completion of tracking method and compliance determination review. 







 


 


Thank you for the opportunity to provide a preliminary response to the NOV and Alleged 
Violations.  3M looks forward to discussing proposed Corrective Actions and receiving 
Department feedback at the Enforcement Conference.  Please do not hesitate to contact Shelley 
Koehn via phone at (651) 733-8428 or by email at skoehn2@mmm.com with any interim or 
follow-up questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Mark Meurette 
EHS Engineer 
3M Wausau  
 
Cc:   Ashley Gray, WDNR 
 Bill Hefner, Mario Diaz, Andrea Russell, Shelley Koehn; 3M 
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